
RFP 212-6-0611 

JBCC Licensing and Compliance System 

Q&A 

All questions and answers will post weekly, with the last posting within 2 days of the end of the question period. 

Audio file of the Pre-Offeror’s Conference held on May 19, 2016 

Question Response 
1. How many named users will need access to the 

new licensing and compliance system? 
Approximately 9 – 11 internal users working with 
application and administration functions.  External web users 
(online renewal, demographic updates, and payments) 
number in the 10,000 range. 
 

2. I have looked on the ESBD site and the OCA site 
and can’t seem to locate the Exhibits E, F, G, H, I 
and J flow charts. Can you please point me in the 
right direction? 

 

Five of the six exhibits are renewing flowcharts referencing 
OCA’s current licensing programs on a high level. They are 
listed below.  The sixth exhibit is the RFP system 
requirements which are already listed within the RFP. 
Court Reporters 
Reporting Firms 
Process Servers 
Guardians 
Court Interpreters  
 

3. I wanted to know if attendance at the 
Respondent’s Conference on May 19th for RFP 
JBCC LICENSING AND COMPLIANCE 
SYSTEM is mandatory or optional.  Additionally, 
can a vendor attend remotely via phone/online 
meeting?  Thanks! 

The attendance to the Respondent’s Conference is optional 
and a recording of the conference will be available 
afterwards in mp3 format. 

4. As per RFP instructions, I am contacting you with 
an inquiry regarding the upcoming Respondent’s 
Conference (5/19 @ 1PM) -specifically to see if a 
conference call number will be available for 
vendors unable to attend in person. 

The attendance to the Respondent’s Conference is optional 
and a recording of the conference will be available 
afterwards in mp3 format. 

5. I can’t get the hot link in this section (2.3) to 
work. Can you please provide the PDF or a 
current link? 
 

       2.3 System Security Requirements 
       Any proposed system must be in compliance with 
the controls in the Department of Information 
Resources  
       (DIR) Control Standards Catalog (available at             
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resou
rces/DocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Stand
ards%20Catalog.pdf. 

Here is an updated link for section 2.3. 
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resources/D
ocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Standards%20Cata
log%20V%201.3.docx 
 

http://www.txcourts.gov/media/1376972/jbcc-licensing-system-mtg_05192016.mp3
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resources/DocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Standards%20Catalog.pdf
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resources/DocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Standards%20Catalog.pdf
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resources/DocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Standards%20Catalog.pdf
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resources/DocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Standards%20Catalog%20V%201.3.docx
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resources/DocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Standards%20Catalog%20V%201.3.docx
http://publishingext.dir.texas.gov/portal/internal/resources/DocumentLibrary/Security%20Control%20Standards%20Catalog%20V%201.3.docx


      If for any reason, the proposed system is not or 
cannot be in compliance with a control listed in the  
    Control Standards Catalog, the Offeror must note 
      which control(s) cannot be met and why. 

 
6. Could you please help me with the following 

questions: 
Whether companies from Outside USA can apply 
for this? (like, from India or Canada) 
Whether we need to come over there for 
meetings? 
Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside 
USA? (like, from India or Canada) 
Can we submit the proposals via email? 
 

All vendors are encouraged to apply. 
There would be an initial face to face meeting, at minimum, 
with the vendor selected.  OCA may elect to participate in 
web based communication and web based training at OCA’s 
discretion. 

Task may be performed outside the US, however the vendor 
selected must provide adequate and appropriate staff for 
communications (questions, status reports, issues, 
etc.)  during normal OCA business hours (8am – 5pm 
Central, Monday-Friday). Additionally, any support 
provided must be provided during the times listed. 

Please see Section 4.7 on the methods of sending in 
proposals. 
 

7. REQUIREMENT:  F-5 Compliance Solution: 
Microsoft Technology Stack. 
Does the technology stack matter if the vendor is 
proposing a cloud based solution, which the 
vendor manages, that works with SQL Server and 
Internet Explorer? 

In hosted/managed solutions, you may use any technology 
stack you like. However, in the event that the contract ends, 
you must be able to provide the data in a way that does not 
require any special software to modify the data to be 
readable by Microsoft products.  
 

8. On page 41 of 74, the evaluation scoring shows 
20% for Usage of HUB Subcontracting. For a 
non-HUB company that would fully staff without 
subcontracting, how is the score computed. We 
understand we’ll complete the HSP, but would 
look to fulfill the entire contract with our own 
resources. Is a proposal without        
subcontractors scoring 0? 
 

 
 

In the case where a Non-HUB vendor chooses to staff 
internally with no-HUB subcontractors, that 20% would be 
scored with a zero. 
Note: This response has been amended in order to stay 
within the guidelines of the RFP. 
5/20/2016 Amended Response: 
Under Section 3 of the RFP, Respondents are required to 
submit a HUB Subcontracting Plan as part of the response to 
the RFP.  Under that Section, a Respondent who fails to 
submit a HUB Subcontracting Plan or who is determined to 
have failed to develop a Plan in good faith will be 
disqualified from consideration for failing to comply with 
the requirements of the RFP.  Under Section 3.7 a 
Respondent may note on the HUB Subcontracting Plan that 
the Respondent does not intend to subcontract. A 
Respondent who does not intend to subcontract must file a 
HUB Subcontracting Plan and detail in writing how it will 
complete the work under the contract with its available 
personnel, among other things. 
 
Section 4.10 specifies that 20% of the agency’s best value 
determination will be based upon Respondent’s usage of 



HUB subcontracting.  The agency will conduct a review and 
evaluation of Respondents HUB Subcontracting Plans and, if 
necessary additional submissions from Respondents, under 
Section 3 in determining that 20% of the decision. The 
evaluation will include an evaluation of each Respondent’s 
good faith in developing the plan. For Respondents who do 
not intend to subcontract, the agency will review and 
evaluation the Respondent’s plan detailing in writing how 
each deliverable will be executed without subcontracting.  In 
either case, OCA will conduct a qualitative analysis on a 
case-by-case basis to determine how each Respondent should 
be graded on this portion of the selection process. 
  
As stated in Section 3, OCA is committed to promoting full 
and equal participation of business in contracting, 
encouraging the use of HUB, and is committed to making a 
good faith effort to meet or exceed statewide HUB 
goals.  OCA will evaluate responses to the RFP, including 
HUB Subcontracting Plans, with those goals in mind. 
 

9. With respect to Deliverables 4 & 5: For an on-
premises solution, will OCA procure appropriate 
hardware and Microsoft licenses?  

OCA will secure all required licenses for an on-site system. 
If any additional products are needed beyond Windows 
Server 2102R2 and SQL 2014, please note what those 
licenses are in the response. 
 

10. With respect to Deliverables 4 & 5: For an on-
premises solution, will OCA manage the physical 
server installation and configuration of the 
Windows Operating System on the servers used to 
host the solution? 

OCA will provide server installation and configuration on 
servers used on-site for the system. Please note that the 
machines used for this project may be virtual machines. 

11. With respect to Deliverables 4 & 5: For a cloud-
hosted solution, does the response need to include 
the anticipated recurring fixed and variable cost(s) 
to be paid to the cloud hosting provider?   

All responses for hosting the system must include all costs 
associated with hosting the system. Please separate the fixed, 
one-time costs and the ongoing maintenance and operation 
costs. 

12. As a follow-up to response #8 posted online - If 
we are a certified HUB and we do not 
subcontract, will we still get 0 points for the HUB 
portion of our evaluation? 

Under Section 3 of the RFP, Respondents are required to 
submit a HUB Subcontracting Plan as part of the response to 
the RFP.  Under that Section, a Respondent who fails to 
submit a HUB Subcontracting Plan or who is determined to 
have failed to develop a Plan in good faith will be 
disqualified from consideration for failing to comply with 
the requirements of the RFP.  Under Section 3.7 a 
Respondent may note on the HUB Subcontracting Plan that 
the Respondent does not intend to subcontract. A 
Respondent who does not intend to subcontract must file a 
HUB Subcontracting Plan and detail in writing how it will 
complete the work under the contract with its available 
personnel, among other things. 
 



Section 4.10 specifies that 20% of the agency’s best value 
determination will be based upon Respondent’s usage of 
HUB subcontracting.  The agency will conduct a review and 
evaluation of Respondents HUB Subcontracting Plans and, if 
necessary additional submissions from Respondents, under 
Section 3 in determining that 20% of the decision. The 
evaluation will include an evaluation of each Respondent’s 
good faith in developing the plan. For Respondents who do 
not intend to subcontract, the agency will review and 
evaluation the Respondent’s plan detailing in writing how 
each deliverable will be executed without subcontracting.  In 
either case, OCA will conduct a qualitative analysis on a 
case-by-case basis to determine how each Respondent should 
be graded on this portion of the selection process. 
  
As stated in Section 3, OCA is committed to promoting full 
and equal participation of business in contracting, 
encouraging the use of HUB, and is committed to making a 
good faith effort to meet or exceed statewide HUB 
goals.  OCA will evaluate responses to the RFP, including 
HUB Subcontracting Plans, with those goals in mind. 
 

13. In the Q&A you indicated that External web users 
(online renewal, demographic updates, and 
payments) numbered in the 10,000 range.  Please 
confirm that this includes (or does not include) all 
the user groups listed in Item 1.5.  
 

This number includes Court Reporters Certification, 
Guardianship Certification, Process Server Certification, 
Licensed Court Interpreters, and Compliance Program. 

14. Based on the background provided in 1.5 and in 
the Section 2 overview, does OCA anticipate 
substantial growth in agency, court or internal 
state users?  We assume most of the growy you 
anticipate will be external web users, but we 
would like to clarify where you anticipate the 
growth coming from. 
 

As stated in the RFP, we anticipate growth in the number of 
applicants and licensees.  This will translate in an increase in 
web users. 
 

15. Can you please confirm the meaning of 
Compliance Program, Case Status as described in 
Item 1.5?   These don't appear to be users, but we 
would like to confirm the context for listing Case 
Status items in this list.  

The Compliance Program would be for cases going through 
a compliance monitor and review from the opening of the 
case to the disposition of the complaint case. 
 

16. This list indicates that your data base is SQL 
Server but in Section 1.4 you mention that the 
current system is running on an Oracle database. 
We assume this is Versa, but would like to 
confirm.   Can you please provide further context?  
We assume current data records would be 
migrated from Oracle and the Excel spreadsheet 

OCA’s technical environment for this project will be SQL 
Server 2014, running on Windows 2012R2 Virtual Machine.  
All data and records as indicated in the RFP, would need to 
be converted and moved into the solution provided by the 
selected vendor. 
 



for the License Court Interpreter licensing 
program. 
 

17. Our solution is cloud based, runs on an internet 
browser, requires minimal 
database administration, and can be administered 
by end users if that option is desired. It does not 
run on the Microsoft technology stack.  Is OCA 
willing to consider any solutions that don't require 
a Microsoft technology stack? 

In hosted/managed solutions, you may use any technology 
stack you like. However, in the event that the contract ends, 
you must be able to provide the data in a way that does not 
require any special software to modify the data to be 
readable by Microsoft products.  
 

18.  2.2 Functional Requirements - Item SI-3 
-  System must accept the current program to 
convert to new system.  Could OCA please clarify 
this requirement? We are not clear as to what you 
require with this item. 

 
 

 

Selected vendor must be able to read the current program 
data in order to convert to new system. The existing system 
backend is stored in Oracle. 
 

19. Does OCA have a system for Exams or use 
specific third parties?    If so, can you please 
provide a list of vendors and which types of 
exams you have contracted so that we can 
properly estimate scope? 
 

The selected vendor must be able to provide for exam 
records and tracking (scores attempts, etc.).  Offerors would 
not be required for exam recording or tracking. 
 
OCA does not contract exam records or tracking to a third 
party. Texas Court Reporters Association (TCRA) 
is   presently contracted to only administer exams for Court 
Reporters. 
 
 

20. If you deal with exams via a means not outlined 
above, can you please provide further 
clarification? 

The selected vendor must be able to record and track exams 
with scores; which allows for tracking when the scores will 
expire and next eligible exam date. To include exam 
attempts, score, pass/ fail, exam date, exam form, and 
exam/test sequence.  

21. Our firm uses other project planning tools instead 
of Microsoft Project. If the product we use 
provides comparable or better results, would this 
be acceptable to OCA? 
 

OCA would like consistency in our work plan, at a 
minimum, the project plan must be in PDF and in a file 
format readable by Microsoft Project. 
 

22. What is the specific number of Named Users the 
OCA anticipates having on its new system? The 
number provided will be used as a basis for 
calculating pricing. 

Approximately 9 – 11 internal users working with 
application and administration functions.  External web users 
(online renewal, demographic updates, and payments) 
number in the 10,000 range 

23.  Regarding Requirements Submission item 3. 
Product Compliance, is it acceptable to utilize the 
same format (table) that the Functional 
Requirements are listed within and add a row 
below each specific requirement to contain the 
detailed description of how our proposal will 
accomplish each? Or, is there a more desired 

To insure appropriate response to each functional 
requirement, vendors may elect to duplicate and alter the 
functional requirements table to include their response. 



format for Respondents to provide these 
descriptions? Please confirm. 

24.  Functional Requirements Systems Interface 
section mentions a need for certain third-party 
dataexchange interface. Please provide an 
inventory of all required system interfaces and 
note if each interface will be one-way or two-way. 
 

The selected system must be able to interface with Texas.gov 
payment system to process online payments. The selected 
vendor will be provided with specifications after the award. 

25.  Is it possible to provide the RFP in Microsoft 
       WORD file format in order to facilitate 
       Respondents’ efforts in responding to the entire  
       RFP? 

 

The RPF is required to be posted in PDF due to the 
procurement process in place. However, the word version is 
on the Electronic State Business Daily, (ESBD) 
http://esbd.cpa.state.tx.us/bid_show.cfm?bidid=124060 
 

26.  In addition to the desired public website 
functionality described in the RFP, what other 
public functionality does the agency intend to 
have for its new system? 
 

The RFP has stated the public functions required by the 
system, however, if the vendor has additional features 
included in the price, we encourage them to describe them. 

27.  Can the State specify which license type(s) will  
require which types of online functionality (e.g. 

       online applications, renewals, verifications,     
       disciplinary processes, etc.)? 

 

All licensee types as stated in the RFP are required a 
presence on the internet as defined in Section 2, Statement of 
Work. 
 

28.  Please provide the names of all system outputs 
required, including reports, queries, and 

       correspondences. Also provide the audience and  
       the location from which each will be run  
      (backoffice, public website, specific login-secured  
       area of public website, etc.). If such details are not 
       available at this time, please provide at least the  
       total numbers of each type of output required. 

 

System functional requirements are outlined in the RFP.  The 
number requirement outputs if not already defined, then 
would be discussed with the selected vendor and OCA. 

29.  Please fully define and quantify the ongoing 
support the agency will require after system  

       implementation, including inclusion or exclusion  
       of each item (and sub-item) in the following 
       categories: 
 
a) Help Desk Support (24x7 emergency support, end-
user support, configuration and 
troubleshooting, developer-to-developer support, 
hardware/network/security tips, 
architecture and best practice guidance, online remote 
desktop support, dedicated account 
management, local user group support) 
 
b) Training and Documentation (web courses, agency-
specific process training, software 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Please see section 2.7 Support Requirements for defined 
support.  
 
 
 
 
 
Please see section 2.6 Training Requirement for defined 
support.  
 

http://esbd.cpa.state.tx.us/bid_show.cfm?bidid=124060


training, core software documentation, user 
conference) 
 
c) Software Patches and Releases (new major version 
software release versions, installation of 
new software versions, core software patches, 
installation of core software patches) 
 
d) Customization, Enhancement, and Corrections 
(design/configuration/testing support, 
customization projects, customization tasks, defect 
correction, installation of customization 
corrections) 
 
e) Hosting Service (weekly backup, daily backup, 
hosting of proposed proprietary software 
solution, IP address owned and provided by Company, 
maintenance of hosting 
environment, data security) 
 
  

 

 
OCA and the selected vendor will discuss software 
frequency of patches and releases.  OCA and vendor roles 
must defined and stated in Deliverable 3 Written Project 
Work Plan.  
 
See Deliverable 4 Installation/Configuration of the Test 
Environment and section 2.8 Contract Deliverables and 
Acceptance.  
 
 
 
 
See section 2.7 Support Requirements for hosting and on-site 
system requirements. 

30.  After the new system is implemented, what 
growth and need for enhancements does the 
agency anticipate with respect to the number of 
users, programs, and/or processes? 
 

OCA does not anticipate and additional internal users or 
programs at this time. However, one of the requirements 
required that the system be capable of expanding. 

31.  We offer multiple support plan options in 
addition to the primary support plan we will be 
proposing.  How would you like us to incorporate 
the additional options and corresponding contract 
language into our proposal, to provide the agency 
with the right and option to choose from our full 
range of support options in the future? 
 

Responses can include any support options that provide the 
requirements of Section 2.7. If multiple options exist, 
offerors can propose each one with pricing. 

32.  What is the budget for this project? If all cost 
proposals come in above a certain amount, would 
this RFP be cancelled? What is that amount? Did 
the legislature allocate any funds specifically for 
this project? If so, what is the amount allocated, 
and when does it need to be used? 
 

The legislature appropriated expenditure authority for many 
IT projects and the agency has the authority to expend funds 
for this project but the legislature did not make an 
appropriation specifically for this project.  . OCA anticipates 
that the project will be completed within the schedule 
specified in the RFP. 
 
 

33.  Please identify instances where any agency 
employee has viewed or discussed a potential 
software application similar to the one being 
solicited in this RFP in the last 24 months. Please 
name the vendor(s), dates of contact and describe 
the nature of the contacts including whether 

The terms and conditions of this RFP is handled the same for 
all interested vendors.  Each stage of the RFP process is 
outlined in the RFP and is/has been conducted as defined in 
RFP 212-6-0611 JBCC LICENSING AND COMPLIANCE 
SYSTEM.  No JBCC employee has viewed or discussed 
potential software applications in that period. No JBCC 



pricing was discussed. Has the agency received 
any estimates or quotations for the services and 
software describe in this RFP, and if so, which 
ones and what were the amounts? 
 

employee has discussed pricing of applications solicited 
under the RFP. 

34.  Can you elaborate on the agency's preferences 
regarding hosting with the vendor? 

OCA encourages all interested vendors to apply. See section 
2.7 Support Requirements for hosting and on-site system 
requirements 

35.  Did the legislature approve a line item for this    
 project in the agency's budget? If so, what is the   
 amount and what does it cover? 
 
 

The 84th Legislature did not approve a line item for this 
specific project in the agency’s budget. 

36.  We would like to clarify the request to submit “a 
cloud-based solution as well as system hosted on OCA 
servers.” Must a valid response include both an on-
premises solution as well as a cloud solution, or can 
we submit whichever hosting solution we believe to be 
best suited to the project? 
 

Respondents can offer whichever hosting solution that is believed 
to be best suited to the project. If the respondent wishes to show 
both options, that too is welcomed. 

37.  We would also like to understand what is requested 
by a “cloud-based solution.” Does OCA require the 
ability to increase user capacity by dynamically 
provisioning new servers in a cloud environment, or is 
“cloud based” being used as a synonym for externally 
hosted servers? 
 
 

The term cloud-based in this RFP is intended to mean externally 
hosted servers.  

38.  In response to questions #9 and 10, if an on-premises 
solution is selected, will OCA provide new or existing 
hardware, or must a hardware cost be included in a 
response? 
 
 

If hosted on-premises, OCA will provide the hardware to support 
virtual servers to accomplish the tasks. If this route is taken, no 
additional costs for hardware are needed. 

39. Since you will allow the development of the system to 
occur in India - will you also allow the servers and 
data for development, test, and production hosting to 
be in India? 
 

 
 

Development servers and dummy data for development can be 
used outside the U.S. Any test and production environments must 
reside inside the U.S. 
 

40. Please provide the pre-proposal attendee list of the 
above RFP conference that was held yesterday 

The Pre-Offeror Attendee list is located on the Electronic 
State Business Daily, (ESBD) 
http://esbd.cpa.state.tx.us/bid_show.cfm?bidid=124060 
 

41. Is the OCA JBCC Licensing and Compliance System 
proposal going out as a DBITS contract?  If so, is the 
OCA JBCC Licensing and Compliance System 
proposal a Request for Proposal or Statement of 
Work?  The cover page reads “Request for Proposals” 
but Section 2’s heading reads “Statement of Work”. 

The proposal is a Request for Proposal written to encourage all to 
apply. Section 2 describes the work that needs to be done, hence 
“Statement of Work”. If the chosen vendor is indeed part of the 
DIR DBITS program, OCA may award through that vehicle. 
However, being on DIR’s DBIT vendor list does not count for or 
against any vendor. 

http://esbd.cpa.state.tx.us/bid_show.cfm?bidid=124060


 
42.   Could you please clarify on page 8, F-5, Microsoft 

Technology Stack, All technology must be of the 
Microsoft Technology Stack? 

In hosted/managed solutions, you may use any technology stack 
you like. However, in the event that the contract ends, you must be 
able to provide the data in a way that does not require any special 
software to modify the data to be readable by Microsoft 
products. If the solution proposed is to be hosted in the OCA 
datacenter, it must be on Microsoft products (Windows Server 
2012R2, IIS 7, SQL Server 2014, etc). 
  

43.     Have you already obtained approval, or will you 
need to obtain approval, to utilize a cloud 
environment? 

 

OCA has full authority to utilize a cloud environment. No 
additional approvals are needed. 

44.  Can you explain a little about the agencies A/R 
system and how this project is anticipated to interact 
with it? 

OCA is assuming A/R is Accounts and Receivables.  The 
system must have the ability to assess and distribute 
payments as defined by each program's statue. To include 
distributing payments among multiple balances. And the 
selected system must have the ability to assign 
payment transaction 
numbers for all financial transactions and to be 
sequential.       

 
45.  Under section 1.2 of the RFP, will there be any 

leeway on this date if the project does not start on time 
due to JBCC delays in completing RFP review, etc.? 
 
 

OCA does not anticipate any delays in our RFP reviews. 
 

 

46.  Will the State grant an extension for submission of the 
RFP response by another four weeks? 

No, the timeline is clearly stated in the RFP 

47.  Did the State evaluate solutions that could meet its 
requirements through vendor demonstrations leading 
up to the RFP release? If so, what types and names of 
solutions and vendors were evaluated (vendor-hosted 
and on-premise)? 

No. 

48.  Did the State use any vendor(s) to help develop the 
RFP? If so, will the State please share the name of the 
vendor(s)? 

No 

49.  As per section 5.25 ‘Intellectual Property Claims’’ of 
the RFP, Cloud Services Provider is proposing a 
cloud-based SaaS solution that would be configured to 
meet the State’s specific requirements. Cloud Services 
Provider is not physically delivering software. While 
relevant in traditional on-premise, perpetual license 
software, this requirement does not make sense in a 
cloud computing model. Additionally, a Cloud 
Services Provider would be responsible for 
maintaining access in terms of performance and 
availability to the data. The data is owned by the State. 
The State would have full rights to extract their data at 
any time. As such, all intellectual property is owned by 
the respective vendors, therefore, can this requirement 
be adjusted for pure SaaS solutions? 

No 



50.  Please list all the required integrations and the 
available APIs for each. 

The requirements detail the integrations required. The APIs for 
those integrations will be given to the selected vendor. 

51.  Requirement #SI-4: Please provide a use case for 
“Adobe Reader conversion and review for printing.” 

The system should be able to allow any web input to be viewed 
and printed in Adobe Reader. 
 

52.  Requirement #RR-22: Where is the information for 
‘student loan default’ and ‘delinquent child support’ 
managed?  Does the proposed solution need to 
integrate with an external system (s)? 

Loan defaults and delinquent child support information comes 
from the corresponding agencies.  The proposed solution does not 
need to integrate with these agencies.  The system should be able 
to accept the default/delinquent status on a license and then report 
in a document. 
 

53.  Requirement #RT-3: What is a ‘TGSL default Texas Guarantee Student Loan places a default on a license to 
prevent the licensee from renewing their license. 
 

54.  Requirement #ACE-3: Is the verification of the CE 
course done through an integration to the CE course 
system, or is it a manual verification and the staff 
member is doing a manual update? 
 

The must be able to verify CE course requirement through the 
system and then alert when not validated. 
 
 

55.  Requirement #AEX-8 – Please clarify where the exam 
scores are coming from.  Is this data loaded into the 
system that this project is creating, or is this a feed 
from an external source 

The exam scores/parts are in the current system. 

56.  Requirement #AL-13 – Will the JBCC please clarify 
what the definition of a “tickler” is in the scenario 
described? 
 

System must be able to define multiple ticklers and have them 
apply to applications/ticklers. 
 

57.  Does the State require any offline inspection 
capability?  If so, please state the number of users. 
Please confirm that all the functional, technical and 
interface requirements have been defined in the RFP. 

All known requirements have been put in the RFP 

58.  Is the State considering using card readers at the 
counter for payment processing?  If so, would this 
need to be part of this project, or at a later date? 

No. Any payment processing involving credit cards will be done 
online. 
 

59.  To understand your fee types, please provide a copy 
of your current fee schedule 
 

FEES OF THE JUDICIAL BRANCH CERTIFICATION 
COMMISSION 

Certified Court Reporters and Court Reporting Firms 

(a) Applicants for Certification and Certified Reporters. 

(1) Certification Application Fee. Each applicant must submit a 
certification fee of $85 with the completed application. 

(2) Examination Fee. Each applicant who is taking the certification 
examination must submit an examination fee of $75 for Part B, $125 
for Part A, or $190 for Parts A and B combined by the date 
established by the Commission. 



(3) Examination Late Fee. The late fee that must be paid by an 
applicant whose application to take the examination is late 
according to the deadlines established by the Commission is $25. 

(4) Renewal Fee (Before Expiration of Certification). Each certified 
court reporter must submit a renewal fee of $200 on or before the 
expiration date of the certification. If this fee is not timely paid, the 
certification will expire pursuant to Rule 6.3. 

(5) Renewal Fee (Expired for Ninety Days or Less). A person whose 
certification has been expired for 90 days or less may renew the 
certification by paying a renewal fee of $300. 

(6) Renewal Fee (Expired More than Ninety Days but Less than 
One Year). A person whose certification has been expired for more 
than 90 days but less than one year may renew the certification by 
paying a renewal fee of $400. 

(7) Recertification Fee (Moved to Another State). A person who 
was certified in this State, moved to another state, and is currently 
certified and has been in practice in the other state for the two years 
preceding the date of application may obtain a new certification 
without reexamination by paying a fee of $400. 

(8) Subscription Fee. With each fee required by (a)(4)-(7), a person 
must pay an additional, subscription fee of $10 to fund a common 
Internet licensing system pursuant to Section 2054.2591 of the 
Government Code. 

(9) Regrading Fee. A person who requests that an examination be 
regraded must pay a regrading fee of $35. 

(10) Replacement Fees. A person who requests a replacement for 
the person's certificate must pay a fee of $15. A person who requests 
a replacement for the person's ID card must pay a fee of $5. 

(b) Court Reporting Firms. 

(1) Registration Fee. Each registrant must submit a registration fee 
of $200 along with the completed registration form. 

(2) Renewal Fee (Before Expiration of Registration). Each 
registered court reporting firm and affiliate office must submit a 
renewal fee of $200 on or before the expiration date of the 



registration. If this fee is not timely paid, the registration will expire 
pursuant to Rule 6.3. 

(3) Renewal Fee (Expired for Ninety Days or Less). A firm whose 
registration has been expired for 90 days or less may renew the 
registration by paying a renewal fee of $300. 

(4) Renewal Fee (Expired More than Ninety Days but Less than 
One Year). A firm whose registration has been expired for more 
than 90 days but less than one year may renew the registration by 
paying a renewal fee of $400. 

(5) Replacement Fee. A firm that requests a replacement 
registration certificate must pay a fee of $15. 

(6) Subscription Fee. With each fee required by (b)(2)-(4), a person 
must pay an additional, subscription fee of $12 to fund a common 
Internet licensing system pursuant to Section 2054.2591 of the 
Government Code. 

Certified Guardians 

(a) Application fee—$25 (An employee of the Texas Department 
of Aging and Disability Services who is applying for certification 
to provide guardianship services to a ward of the Department is 
exempt from payment of this fee.) 

(b) Exam fee (initial)—$175 (This fee must be paid separately from 
all other fees by the date established in the exam schedule.) 

(c) Exam fee (retake)—$175 (This fee must be paid separately from 
all other fees by the date established in the exam schedule.) 

(d) Renewal fee—$25 (An employee of the Texas Department of 
Aging and Disability Services who is applying for renewal of 
certification to provide guardianship services to a ward of the 
Department is exempt from payment of this fee.) 

(e) Late fee—$75 

(f) Replacement fee—$5 

Certified Process Servers 

(a) Application fee—$225 

(b) Renewal fee—$225 



(c) Late fee (for late renewals, in addition to renewal fee)—$110 

(d) Subscription fee to accompany each initial or renewal 
application, to fund participation in a common Internet licensing 
system under Section 2054.2591 of the Government Code—$5 

(e) Replacement fee—$5 

Licensed Court Interpreters 

(a) Application fee—$75 

(b) Renewal application fee—$50 

(c) Upgrade to Master application fee—$25 

(d) Additional endorsement fee—$25 

(e) Replacement license fee—$5 

(f) Written examination fee—$100 

(g) Oral examination fee—$300 

(h) Renewal Fee (Expired for Ninety Days or Less). A person whose 
license has been expired for 90 days or less may renew the 
certification by paying a renewal fee of $75. 

(i) Renewal Fee (Expired More than Ninety Days but Less Than 
One Year). A person whose license has been expired for more than 
90 days but less than one year may renew the certification by paying 
a renewal fee of $100. 
 

60.  Does the State require both electronic as well as a 
hard copy submission? In section 4.5, the format 
requirements are electronic but in section 4.8 it states 
hard copy delivery methods. Can you please restate the 
specific requirements - hard copy or electronic or 
both? If hard copy, how many copies are required? 
Section 4.5 details the format of the submission 
(electronic). If the vendor chooses to send a USB drive 
containing the electronic proposal, section 4.8 details 
how to deliver the proposal to us.  
 

Only one copy is needed. 

61.   Regarding 2.1 General Requirements, why is the state 
moving from Versa to another product? Does the state 
have a preference between migrating to a new 
vendor/product or upgrading to a new vendor/product? 
Why? 

Our current installation is at end of life – rather than straight 
upgrade, we wish to see what other options are available 

62.  Requirement F-24. States System must provide ability 
to turn on or off auto word complete as well as zip 

The system needs to auto-populate select fields. 
 



code fill-in and state defaults. What does this mean in 
the context of a browser based app? 

63.  For requirement F-28, Backup and Recovery, how 
long is the vendor to retain backup data? In the event a 
data restore is required, is the backup from the prior, 
daily maintenance period sufficient? 

System must be able to provide daily backups and real time 
backups for recovery. Must provide recovery based on an “as of” 
date/time in the past. 

64. System Interface requirement SI-3 states “System must 
accept the current program to convert to new system.” 
Please explain this requirement further. 

As specified in the RFP, the current date is currently in multiple 
systems, the selected vendor has to convert the data into the 
selected system. 

65.  Regarding System Interface requirement SI-4, please 
explain what data will be converted to Abode Reader. 
Does the state requires export to Abode Reader with 
pre-populated data? If so,state the number of different 
target forms to be populated. 

System must allow printing of reports, etc., via Adobe Reader. 

66.  Please describe what it means to verify a CE course in 
the context of JBCC Review requirement JBCC-1. 

System must be able to verify if course entered is an approved CE 
course. 
 

67. Security requirement SEC-5 states that “System must 
prevent ‘shared’ passwords. Please define "shared" 
password. 

System must not allow for shared/duplicate log on. 

68.  For requirement SEC-6, please describe what is to 
occur in the event of a password override. 

The old password is removed and replaced by the new password. 

69.  Regarding 2.2.2 Availability, what is the maximum 
downtime allowed in the event of a hardware failure? 
And/or destruction of primary data center? 

In the event of a system failure, the system should 
have the capability to recover quickly, minimize loss 
of data and limit impact on operations. 
 

70.  Please describe the state's desired recovery time 
objectives for the items listed and described within 
2.2.2 Availability. 

In the event of a system failure, the system should have the 
capability to recover quickly, minimize loss of data and limit 
impact on operations 

71.  Regarding 2.3 System Security Requirements, please 
describe the overlap between the State's requirements 
industry standards such as PCI-DSS, NIST and/or 
HIPPA. Is the State aware of non-standard, state 
requirements? Would meeting industry requirements 
meet the state's Control Standards Catalog 
requirements? 
 

Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 202 reflects the State’s 
security standards. The Control Standards Catalog can be crossed 
referenced mainly with NIST. 

72.  For item 2.4 Implementation Requirements, please 
describe the State project management, subject matter 
expert and technical experts available for this project 

Deliverable 1 – Project Kickoff Presentation will define roles and 
responsibilities. 
 

73.  For 2.6 Training Requirements, please describe the 
minimum on-site training time expectation. 

The training should be sufficient to guide users with little or no 
technical experience and aid internal users in assisting external 
users. Additional specifics can be worked out with selected 
vendor. 

74.  For Hosted System, item 2.7.1 ‘SLA for all issue 
resolutions, does the SLA apply to 
hosting/environment issues? Defects? Or something 
else? Please elaborate. 
 

 The requirement applies to “all issue resolutions”. If the vendor 
has differing times for issue resolution based on the issue type, 
please delineate that in the response. 



75.  Regarding the sentence found within item 2.8 
Contract Deliverables and Acceptance, 
 
“Acceptance by OCA shall not foreclose or diminish 
OCA’s right to demand strict compliance with the 
Contract if defects in the system or deviations from the 
requirements of the Contract are discovered following 
acceptance.” To better understand the meaning, please 
provide a scenario or example where this could occur? 
If the agency accepts a design specification, is the 
State reserving the right to later say the accepted 
design specification did not actually meet the contract 
requirement? 

 Knowing that testing never covers 100%, this provides OCA the 
ability to have the vendor correct any defect that is found to cause 
the system not to comply with the requirements in the RFP 

76.  For Deliverable 1 – Project Kickoff Presentation, is 
the presentation intended to be on-site or remote? 

Vendor’s choice. However, please specify in the response if you 
choose to have it remote so that we can ensure that we have the 
facilities available 

77.  For Deliverable 2 Design Development 
/Programming, can this deliverable be broken into 
design/specification acceptance sub-deliverables per 
program and/or business process? 

All proposals must include a project work plan to address 
proposed work design details that meet the acceptance criteria.   

78.  Regarding Acceptance Criteria for Deliverable 9 – 
Support / Maintenance, the industry norm is for 
maintenance, hosting and upgrades to be paid prior to 
the first day of the term being supported -- not post-
term as suggested. Is the state open to a change? If not 
and there is a disagreement about payments for the 
prior term, would the state be susceptible to service 
interruption? 

OCA prefers to run support as specified in the RFP. 

79.  What is ISS v? IIS 7 is Internet Information Services version 7, Microsoft’s web 
server software. 
 

80.  Will data conversion require any data cleansing and/or 
validation? 
 

Maybe – depends on your system 

81.  Will data conversion require any data consolidation 
and/or transformation? 
 

Maybe – depends on your system 
 

82.  Please clarify what "other modules within the system" 
are. Will these modules be external to the vendor 
proposed solution (i.e. existent JBCC applications, 
databases, etc.)? 

System must have the ability to duplicate data across the 
application in order to auto populate on other modules within the 
system. Modules such as CE, Enforcement, Fees, etc. 

83.  What is meant by ‘Ongoing Quarter Cost’ – through 
the end of contract?  What should be priced? 

In the event that the vendor proposed a hosted system, this is the 
ongoing costs of operation and maintenance in the hosted 
environment 

84.  Please define "full term of the contract". 
Is "full term of the contract" from the deployment to 
production (June 01, 2017 to Aug 2018)? 
 

Under 5.8, the term is generally from the start of the agreement 
until August 31, 2018, subject to the exceptions stated in that 
section.  Also “acceptance” under Section 2.8 is based upon 
OCA’s determination of whether services, work and materials are 
satisfactory and 2.6 and 2.7 require training and customer support, 
respectively.  Each of these provisions, among others, may extend 
the term of the contract beyond August 31, 2018.     



85.  Are there documented workflows (e.g., Visio 
diagrams) for the current license applications, 
including any related enforcement workflows? If so, 
can they be shared? 

See the response to question #2 for renewal application workflow. 
 
 

86.  Is there a need for field automation technology? In 
other words, are their currently 
inspections/investigations done in the field related to 
complaints? 

All known requirements have been put in the RFP. Please specify 
in the response, with pricing, if you choose to include automation 
technology. 

87.   Would you prefer to automate most if not all of the 
communications? (Email notifications for Application 
Status, License Renewals, License Holds/Statuses, 
Test Results, Hearings, etc...) Internal 
Communications about a Violation, Complaint, 
Change in Disposition, etc.) 
 

Yes 

88.   Do you have current documentation of the OCA 
Business rules and legal requirements? 
 

Business rules are defined by the requirements of the RFP. Any 
additional business rules will be given to the selected vendor. 

89.   In general, the requirements listed appear to be based 
on the "current process", to include manual data entry 
activities.  For example: Section 2.2 Functional 
Requirements, AL-9 states "System must have the 
ability to enter criminal history to include arrest date, 
offense and disposition".   RR-22 states the "system 
must have the ability to report licenses not eligible for 
renewal due to student loan default or delinquent child 
support".   "RT-3 states "the system must have the 
ability to place hold and alert CE or TGSL default 
holds on 
licenses".                                                                         
Question: is the agency open to reengineering the 
processes such that required criminal history, student 
loan and child support data may be retrieved directly 
from agency-to-agency to reduce manual entry? 
 

The criminal history information must be captured, OCA is willing 
to review any options that gets us to that end. 

90.   Related Question: How does the agency currently 
 obtain Criminal History, Student Loan, and Child  
 Support information on applicants?  
 

The information is received electronically from the appropriate 
agency or entity. 

91. Would your preference be that all payments be 
processed through Texas.Gov and that Texas.Gov 
merely update the record in the new platform?   
 

OCA will review options presented. 

92.   Does Texas.Gov provide any financial reporting 
now? If so, what reports? 
 

OCA receives a monthly report of fees processed and due to 
Texas.gov 

93.  Do you require payment be received before the 
applicant can test?  Receive the license/card? 
 

Yes 

94.  When processing payments, will you need the General 
Ledger (Account Numbers) Information in the system? 
Or will you only use the platform to track the payment 
by the program and person it applies to? 

Account information would be needed for reconciliation and 
tracking purposes. 



 
95. What specific types of Financial Reports do you 

expect the system to deliver? 
 

Reports are included in the RFP.  Any additional reports may be 
discussed with the selected vendor. 

96.   Do you/would you use charts and visual graphs to 
deliver information? 
 

OCA is willing to review with the selected vendor the need for 
visual graphics. 

97.  What are the types of legal/compliance reports 
mandated by OCA / Texas State for the licensing 
process? 
 

Reports are included in the RFP.  Any additional reports may be 
discussed with the selected vendor. 

98.  What are the 3rd party system integrations involved in 
your current system? 
 

Texas.gov 

99. Is it your intention to completely replace the Versa 
Database with the new system? 
 

Yes 

100. From what system does the agency investigate  
    complaints involving the professions? 
 

Versa Database 

101. Requirements A-5 - To include the allowance for 
     fiscal and calendar year edits to license numbers.   
     What does this mean?  
 

When necessary, to alter license/cert numbers to include the 
current fiscal year within the naming convention. 

102. Section 2. Statement of Work indicates, "The 
system must provide for the investigation, legal action, 
and disciplining of individuals and companies 
(regardless of licensure status)."  Can you please 
clarify what is meant by the term "legal action"?  
 

The JBCC can (itself) take disciplinary action against a person or a 
firm – by imposing an administrative penalty, or suspending a 
license or revoking a license.  But it can take other legal action – 
like seeking an injunction in district court or issuing a cease and 
desist order.   
 

103. Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.   F-14 states 
that the "System must provide unique numbers that are 
identified separately from license numbers."  Is the 
unique number only numeric?  Can they be alpha 
numeric?  How many digits are in the unique number? 
 

The unique number can be numeric, alpha or alphanumeric.  The 
length would depend on the selected system and OCA. 

104. Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.   F-18 states 
that the "System must process reinstated applicants." 
What is the definition of a reinstated applicant?   
 
Is the unique number only numeric?  Can they be 
alpha numeric?  How many digits are in the unique 
number?  
 

Must be able to take an expired/suspended license and process as 
reinstated. Which may require different requirements. 

105. Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.  Both A-5 
and A-6 state "By authorized permission". What is 
meant by "authorized permission"?  
 

Administrative permission. 

106.   Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.  A-7 states 
"Calculate and display application age."   Is it correct 
to assume the application age is measured in days?  Do 
Holiday's count? 
 

Age is counted in days, to include holidays 



107. Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.  A-8 states 
"System can track incomplete applications" Is there a 
"number of days" threshold that an application can 
remain in an incomplete status?  Do Holiday's count? 
 

The number of days can vary from 1 to 1095 days.  Days include 
holidays. 

108. Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.  A-13 
references to "Enforcement" as a module. What is 
meant by "Enforcement" from a module perspective? 
 

There are processes for Enforcement which are different from 
Licensing. 

109.   Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.  AL - 1. 
references to having the ability to search by fields to 
include SSN and tax ID. Are SSN, Tax-Id the primary 
search keys?   
 

The primary key can be discussed with selected vendor. 

110. How does the "unique number" referenced in F-14 
apply to AL-1?  
 

F-14 could be one listed in AL-1. 

111. Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.  AC-12. 
States the system should provide an overall disposition 
on a case. Is the overall disposition determined by a set 
of business rules that can be accounted for or is there 
some other means in determining the overall 
disposition of a case?   
 

The disposition can be determined by a set of business rules. 

112. Section 2.2 Functional Requirements.  CSH-13. 
States the system should allow for overpayment on 
records? Are overpayments refunded?  Can applicants 
choose to allocate the overpayment amount be retained 
and applied to a future renewal?  
 

Overpayments can and/or cannot be refunded.  Overpayments are 
not applied to future renewals. 

113. Does the system need to offer the test/testing 
(exams)?  
 

The Exams and Scores requirements detail how the system must 
accommodate exams and testing. 

114. Can a WORD version of the RFP be made 
available? 
 

The RPF is required to be posted in PDF due to the procurement 
process in place. However, a WORD version is posted on the 
ESBD page,  located on the Electronic State Business Daily, 
(ESBD) 
http://esbd.cpa.state.tx.us/bid_show.cfm?bidid=124060 
 

115. How much data is expected to be migrated from 
the old system into the new system?  
 

The JBCC currently uses a system for the operations of the court 
reporter certification program, process servers, and guardians 
using an Oracle database.  There are approximately 25,000 
records, and 30 critical tables. The License Court Interpreter 
licensing program is maintained on an Excel database with 
approximately 500 records. 

 
Pursuant to the contract, Contractor will transfer active 
programs/records and other programs dating back to 2010 to the 
new system. 

 
116. Is Versa an acronym? If yes, what does it stand 

for?  
Versa is the name of system OCA currently uses. 

http://esbd.cpa.state.tx.us/bid_show.cfm?bidid=124060


 

 
117. Is it possible to provide more information on the 

Versa system referenced in the RFP, e.g. data 
structure, primary use?  
 

Any additional information needed to complete the scope of the 
RFP will be provided to the selected vendor. 

118. Is it your intention to completely replace the Versa 
Database with the new system?  
 

Yes 



 

  



 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


